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This matter comes before the Court on Plaintiff's Motion for Final
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Judgment by Default filed by the Offce ofthe Attorney General, Anne

Milgram, and the Court not receiving any opposition to said motions and

having reviewed all documents submitted and for good cause shown the

Court makes the following findings:

This matter arises from a complaint filed on October 10, 2008 by Anne

Mìlgram, Attorney General of 
New Jersey, David Szuchman, Director ofthe

New Jersey Division of Consumer Affairs and Cheryl Fulmer, acting

Director of the New Jersey Division of 
Taxation, ("Plaintiffs") against Red

Jacket Tobacco ("Red Jacket") and Lesley A. Hoag ("Ms. Hoag")

individually and as principal and owner of 
Red Jackct (collectively

"Defendants") and others for violations of 
the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A.

54:40A-l et. seq.; the Tobacco Product Manufacturers' Responsibilty Act

("Responsibilty Act"), N.J.S.A. 52:4D £1 seg.; the Cigarette Sales Tax Act,

N.J.S.A. 54:40A-46A £1 seQ.; and the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act

(HCFA"), NJ.S.A. 56:8.1 £1 sea., as well as its Advertising Regulations,

N.J.A.C. 13:45A-9.1 etseQ.

On October i 4,2008, the Deputy Attorney General ("DAG"), Cathy A

Melitski, served the Summons and Complaint to Defendants by both
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certified and regular maiL. i See Cert. of 
Cathy A. Melitski, Exh. B. On

November 3,2008, the certified mail packages were returned and marked

"Refused".2 See li Exh. B. On November 12, 2008, the DAG fied a

Certification of Service with the Court. See id., ~ 5. Pursuant to R. 4:4-

4(b)( 1 )(C), service to Defendants was effectuated, because the Summons

and Complaint were mailed simultaneously by certified miiil and by ordinary

mail to both Defendants. See id., Exh. B.

Plaintiffs fied its First Amended Complaint against Defendants in this

Court on February 20, 2009 containing the same allegaiions and correcting

the spellng of Ms. Hoag's first name from "Leslie" to "Lesley". See Cert.

of Cathy A. Melitski, ~ 6 & Exh. C. On March 3, 2009, the DAG served

the First Amended Complaint to Defel1dants by both certified and regular

mail.J See ¡d., Exh. D. On March 16,2009, the certified mail packages

were returned and marked "Refused".4 See ¡d., Exh. A On March 19,

2009, the DAG filed a Certification of Service of the First Amended

Complaint with the Court. See id., '17 & Exh. D. Pursuant to R. 1 :5-4(b), if

an addressee refuses to accept delivery of certitied mail, service to

i There were four pockugt. mailed ro Doiendanis and addro,sed ns (ollows: (I) Leslie Haog. P.O. Box 572.

Solomonea. NY 14779.1479. (2) LC.lie Hong, 264 River Strt, Salamanca NY 14779-1479. ()) Leslie
Hoaii. Príaeipnl of Rod JaCkel Toboeco. )'.0. Box 572. Solomonco, NY 14779.1479. and (4) Leslie Hoag,
Principal of Red Jockot Tobiceo. 264 River Sireet. Salomone" NY 14779.1479.
i Ploiniíffs f"Hod to include copies o(these returned ond markod "Refused" packages.

'Thei'o wore Iwo pockagos moilod to Defendonis and addressed It follows: (i) Lesley A. Houg. 1'.0. Box
572. Solmnmieo. NY 14779.1479. and (2) Lesley A. Hoog. 264 River Slfeer. Salamonea NY 14779-1479.
4 Plaintiff, have ineluded cop ie, orillese reiumod and marked "Reillsed" packages.
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Defendants is deemed complete on mailng of ordinary inail, March 3, 2009.

See id., Exh. D.

On April 3,2009, Default was entered against Defendants because

Defendants failed to answer or otherwise move as to the complaint. See id.,

Exh. F. Entry of Default is govemed by R. 4;43-1. The first requirement

for entry of Default is that the defendants must have been served with

process so that the court will have personal jurisdiction over those

defendants. R.4:4-4. Additionally, the plaintiff must provide the court with

an affdavit reciting the date of service and the time within which the

defendants may provide their answer. R. 4:43-1. Last, notice ofthe motion

for Default must be served on the defendants. !f

The Deputy Attorney General ("DAG"), Cathy A. Melitski, certifies that

she caused to be mailed via certified and regular mail to Defendants, Red

Jacket Tobacco and Lesley A. Haag, a copy of 
the fied entry of default on

April 3, 2009. See Cert. of Cathy A. Melitski, ~ 10. Copies of 
the April 3,

2009 letters addressed to Defendants are attached to the Certification of

Cathy A. Melitskí. See id., Exh. F. Based on the above rule the Court is

satisfied that default was properly entered.

By way of the prosent motion Plaintiffs request the entr of Final

Judgment by Default seeking permanent injunctive relief, civil penalties,

4
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attorneys' fees, and investigative costs. The Court will now consider the

claims asserted by the State of New Jersey.

LlABILllY

The Plaintiffs assert that the Pinal Judgment by Default should find that

Defendants violated the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-3. See Cert. of

Aziza Salikhov, '1'11-3. The Cigaret'te Tax Act requires a person sellng

cigarettes in New Jersey to obtain the appropriate license. NJ.S.A.54:40A-

3. Plaintiffs assert that Defendants operate an out-of-state 
mail order

cigarette sales business and sold cigaretts to an Investigator posing as a

New Jersey consumer on at least two occasions without a Iicense.s

In support of the assertion that Defendants operate a mail order cigarett

sales business, Plaintiffs state that Defendants sold cigarettes to the

Investigator on at least two occasions. The first occasion occurred on June

26, 2008 when the Investigator ordered five (5) cartons of cigarettes (50

packs of20 cigarettes or 1,000 cigarettes total) from Defendants by calling

the number listed on Defendants Money Mailer Advertisement.6 See Cert.

of Aziza Salikhov, ~ 29. On or about July 14,2008, the Investigator

5 Tht N~w icrs~y consumer rcibrNd 10 i:: un IiweSII&Ulùr. Aj(Îl. Sa!íkhov. i:llploytú by lhc Ncw Jcrsc'y

Deparment OlU1W ;md Public Si.l'ciy. Division ofConSUfli:r Affuirs ("Diiii~it')n") I he' Division begM nn
invcsllti;'Hion ¡0I0 t)efcndrints mliìJ order i;iglll\ui: hl.sín~s.$ añer ihc Anomcy Gcncrol rccdvcll u mi;nC) muiler
udycniscmciil for Ri;d jm.ket 'rubucco ~ Ccri of A,jÍ'.. Snlik.hov. ~ 1..3, Ms. Salilboy iS in cluirgc o/'ihc
invci-iignllOn

, Red Jackei Tobacco contrncLed wini Money Mailer 10 send .dvertiscmcnlS lo Ncw Jersey consumers
through the mail soliciting "TAX FREE CIGARETTES DELIVERED TO YOUR DOOR." ~ C"rt. of
Azíai Salikhov. Exh. D.

s
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received the cigarettes she ordered from Defendants. See id., ~ 39. The

second occasion occurred on October 6, 2008 when the Investigator ordered

two (2) cartons of cigarettes (20 packs of 20 cigarettes or 400 cigarettes

total) from Defendants by calling the same number. See.w ~~ 49,51, & 55

& Exh. K. On October 16, 2008, the Investigator received the cigarettes she

ordered from Defendants. See id., ~ 56. This evidence supports Plaintiffs

assertion that Defendants were operating a mail order cigarette sales

business.

Further, Plaintiffs argue that Defendants were operating this mail order

cigarette sales business out-of-state and without a Iìcense. In support of

this, Plaintiffs assert tliat on or about June 10,2008, the Investigator

searched for different variations of the name "Red Jacket Tobacco" in tlie

New Jersey State Business Gateway Service, Corporate and Business

Information Reporting Database ofthe New Jersey Department of the

Treasury by a general business entity name; by associated name; by a UCC

debtor name and location; by trade name; and trade name location. See id.,

~ 5. The Investigator's search returned nothing, but the Investigator

continued her search to determine whether the Defendants were out-of.state

cigarette sellers.

6

P.7'35



OCT-05-2009 10:24 From:JUOGE SYFEK-CHANCERY 6099896589 To:973 648 7156 P.8'35

Specifically, on August 20,2008, the Investigator called the post offce in

the city and state located on Defendants Money Mailer Advertisement to

determine the identity of the PO Box holder. 7 From this call, the

Investigator learned that Lesley A. Haag ofOxspring Enterprises rented the

PO Box. See id., '1' 9-l2. Eventually, the Investigator located Lesley Hoag

on manta.com. See ¡d., ii J 3. This website listed "Lesley Hoag" as a

principal" of Red Jacket Tobacco, a tobacco company, and also listed

"Leslie Hoag" as a contact person on the company profile page. See id.,

Exh. C. The Investigator began a search using variations ofthe name

"Lesley Hoag", in the New Jersey Stae Business Gateway Service,

Corporate and Business information Reporting Database of 
the New Jersey

Deparimeiit of the Treasury, to see if she was registered as an offcer or

registered agent of a corporation or a sole proprietor. But, the search

returned nothing. See id., '114. As a result, the Investigator concluded that

Defendants were out-of-state cigarette sellers.

Out-oF-state cigarette sellers must be a licensed wholesale dealer or

licensed distributor to sell cigarettes into New Jersey.H See Cert. of 
Chief

Edward Vrancik, '1'1 5-9. The Cigarette Tax Act requires a person selling

7 Tho money mnll.r Iisis PO Box 572. SalDlnancn. NY ns ihe uddre."

'ChiefEdw.rd Vr.ncik is employed by me New Jersey D.panment 01' Treasury, Division ofToxDtion

("Thxarion") and Chier or rhe Miseellhn.ous Tax BI'6Ieh/OlÏce olCriminnl Investig.tions ("Miscellaneous
Tu.") wiihin 'lixorion, lie has been the Chiersinee August 2008. âE li ~ I As port orhisjob he
overseeS the iinhncial audit process on cignrene and LObaeeo products, rctuilers, wholesnle dealers, and
dimibmol's. i! Purl 01' the oudit procoss includes checking whether n business is properly licensed,

7
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cigarettes in New Jersey to obtain the appropriate license. NJ.S.A. 54:40A-

3. However. Plaintiffs assert that Defendants sale of 
these cigarettes was

made without the appropriate Iícense. In support of this assertion, Plaintiffs

refer the Court to Miscellaneous Tax's records. See ¡d., ~6. These records

demonstrate that Defendants have never applied for a distributor or

wholesale dealer license and have never been issued a distributor or

wholesale dealer license. See id., ~~ 6-13. Yet, Defendants have transacted

business in the State of New Jersey on at least two occasions. See Cert. of

Aziza Salikhov 'I~ 35-40, 55-57. Since the Miscellaneous Tax records

indicate that Defendants have never applied for and have never been issued a

distributor or wholesale dealer license, the Court finds that Defendants sale

of these cigarettes was made without a license. Moreover. based on the

Certification of Ch ìefEdward V rancik and the Certification of Investigator

Aziza Salíkhov, the court finds that Defendants were out-of-state cigarette

sellers that sold cigarettes into New Jersey on at least two occasions without

a license. Based on the above facts and evidence, it is clear that Defendants

made cigarette sales into New Jersey without a license in violation oftlie

Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A 54:40A-3.

In addition to the Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-3 Plaintiffs next

assert that the Final Judgment by Default should find that Defendants

8
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violated the Responsibilty Act, N.J.S.A S2:4D-8.b. The Responsibility

Act, N.J.S.A. S2:4D.1 et seq., requires tobacco product manufacturers to

annually certify the cigarette brands they want to sell iii New Jersey and all

cigarette brands that the Attorney General approves for sale in New Jersey

are posted on the New Jersey Attorney General Tobacco Product

Manufacturer's Directory ("Directory") on the Internet at

http://www.nj.gov/oag!oag_tobacco.html. Moreover, pursuant to NJ.S.A.

52:4D.g.b., it is unlawful for any person to "sell, ottèr or possess for sale in

this State, cigarettes of a tobacco products iianutàcturer or brand family not

included in the directory established pursuant to the Act (the Attorney

General Tobacco Manufacturer Directory 1 (hereinafter, "Directory")."

Plaintifts state that the Investigators June 26, 2008 and October 6, 2008

orders included cigarettes not listed on the Directory. In support of 
this

assertion, Plaintiffs state that on June 26,2008, three (3) of 
the Jive (S)

cartons (30 packs of20 cigarettes or 600 cigarettes) were for 30S's brand

cigarettes manufactured by The Dosal Tobacco Corporation and, on October

6,2008, two (2) cartons (20 packs of20 cigarettes or 400 cigarettes) were

for 30S's brand cigarettes manufactured by The Dossl Tobacco Corporation.

See Cert. of Aziza Salikhov ~¡ 33 & Exh. F. Dosal Tobacco Corporation,

the manufacturer of30S's cigarettes. was not listed all 
the Directory on June

9
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26,2008, or October 6, 2008. ~ ¡d. The 305's brand of cigarettes was not

listed on the Directory either. Thus, the Court IÌnds that Defendants sold

cigarettes not listed on the Directory and, as a result, violated the

Responsibility Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D-8.b.

In addition to the Responsibilty Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D-8.b, and the

Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-3, Plaintiffs next assert that the Final

Judgment by Default should find that Defendants violated the Cigarette

Sales Act, NJ,S.A. 54:40A.46 et gi. Pursuant to the Cigarette Sales Act,

N.J.S.A. 54:40A.46 ~ seQ., a person shall not sell cigarettes into New Jersey

unless the sale is a "face-to.face sale", except that a non "face-to-tàce sale"

of cigarettes may occur if 
the following conditions are met:9 the seller (1)

has fully complied with all requirements of the Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C. §375

~ seq., (2) verified, collected or paid all applicable State taxes, and (3)

verified that the purchaser is at least i 9 years old. Defendants' sold

cigarettes through the mail on June 26, 2008 and October 6, 2008. See Cert.

of Aziza Salikhov ~'135, 40, 48.50, 57 & Exhs. G & L. Since Defendants'

sale of cigarettes to Investigator was a non face.to-face sale, Defendants

9 Pursu,ntto N J.s.A. 54;40A-48: II 'face to race s,le' means n snlc in which Ùl~ purchaser is in

the phy.ical presence or the seller 01' ,he seller' s employ~e or agem at 
the iime 01' Ùle shle. II 'raee

to race .ale' dees 1\0l include any tronSleilon conducted by mail order, Ùle Intemei, 
telephone. or

any other anonymous transaction method in which the buyer is nOL in lhe seller's physic"'
preiwnce or the physical presence of the seller's cmployee or agent m the iime of the sfile.

10
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must comply with the requirements of the Cigarette Sales Act, N.J.S.A.

54:40A-49.

Specitically, Defendants must meet three requirements of 
the Cigarette

Sales Act, ~I..S.A. 54:40A-49. First, The Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A.

54:40A-49a, requires Defendants to comply with the Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C.

§376.

The Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C. §376 states in pertinent part:

Aiiy person who sells or trasfers for profit cigarettes in
interstate commerce, whereby siich cigarettes are shipped
into a state taxing the sale or use of cigarettes to other

than a State distributor by or located in such State, or
who advertises or offers cigarettes for such sale or
transfer and shipment, shall-

(I) first file with the tobacco tax administrator of the
State into which such shipment is made or in which
siich advertisement or offer is disseminated a

statement setting fort his name and trade name, and
the address of his principal place of business and any
other place of business; and

(2) not later than the 10'h of each day of each calendar
month, file with the tobacco tax administrator of the
State into which such shipment is made, a
memorandum or copy of the invoice covering each
and every shipment of cigarettes made during the
previous calendar month into such state;
memorandum or invoice in each case to include the
name and address of the person to whom shipment
was made, the brand, and the quantity thereof

11
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Basically, the Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C. §376, requires anyone selling

cigarettes from one State to another to report the sale to the State tobacco tax

administrator. In New Jersey, the State tobacco tax administrator is the

Department of Treasury, Division of 
Taxation. See Cert. of Chief Edward

Vrancik, ~ i 7. The Miscellaneous TaxlOCI Branch receives the cigarette

sales report filed in connection with the Jenkins Act (Jenkins Act Reports").

fu id., 111117 & 18. Plaintiffs offer evidence that The Miscellaneous

Tax/OCr Branch has not received any Jenkins Act report lTom Defendants.

fu id., ,¡,i 19 & 20. Thus, the Court finds that Defendants have failed to

report the sale to the Department of Treasury, Division otTaxation, which is

New Jersey's State tobacco tax administrator. As a result, Defendants have

failed to comply with the Jenkins Act, i 5 U.S.C. §376, and are in violation

of Cigarette Sales Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-49a.

Third, The Cigarette Sales Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-40c, requires

Defendants to verity that the purchaser is at least 19 years old.

Second, Plaintiffs assert that Defendants violated the Cigarette Sales Act,

N.J.S.A. 54:40A-49b. when Defendants did not charge the Investigator the

New Jersey Cigarette ta or New Jersey Sales tax on the June 26, 2008

purchase or the October 6,2008 purchase. The Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A

54:40A-49b., requires the seller of cigarettes in a non" face-to-face sale" to

12
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verify, collect or pay all applicable State taes. Miscellaneous Tax's records

indicate that Detèndants have not veritied or paid applicable taxes pursuant

to the Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A.49. See Cert. of 
Edward

Vrancik,21. See Cert. of Chief Edward Vrancik, ~i~ 21 & 22. Thus,

Defendants have failed to comply with the requirement of 
the Cigarette

Sales Act to verify or pay all applicable State taxes due on cigarettes sold

into New Jersey and are in violation ofN.J.S.A. 54:40A-49b.

Third, Plaintiffs assert that Defendants violated The Cigarette Sales

Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-40c, by failng to verity that the purchaser.

Investigator, was at least 19 years old. The Cigarette Sales Act, N.J.S.A.

54:40A.40c, requires the seller of cigarettes in a non face-to-tàce sale to

verify that the purchaser is at least 19 years old. In SUppolt of this, Plaintiffs

state that on June 26, 2008, Defendants did not ask the Investigator her age,

or ask the Investigator to verity her address, her date of birth, nor did

Defendants request the Investigator to provide a statement under penalty of

perj ury that Investigator, as the purchaser of cigarettes, was at least 19 years

old. See Ccrt. of Aziza Salikhov, ,iir 37 & 38. The Defendants did not ask

her to provide a copy of her valid driver's license or other govemment

13
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issued identification.1o id. The Plaintiffs also state that on October 6, the

Defendants did not ask the Investigator to verify that she was at least 19

years old. See id., ~i~ 52 & 53. Therefore, the Court finds that on at least

two occasions Defendants have failed to comply with the requirement of 

the

Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A 54:40A-49c, to verify that a purchaser of

cigarettes is at least i 9 years old.

Overall Defendants made at least two non tàce-to-face sales of cigarettes

but failed to comply with all three conditions of a non face-to-face sale

under the Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-49. Namely, the Defendants

violated The Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A 54:40A-49a, by failing to comply

with all requirements of the Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C. §376, The Cigarette

Sales Act, NJ.S.A 54:40A-49b, by failing to verif)', collect or pay all

applicable State taxes, and The Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-40c, by

failing to verify that the purchaser is at least 19 years old. As a result, the

Court finds that Defendants violated the Cigarette Sales Act, N.J.S.A.

54:40A-46 et seq.

In addition to the Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-46 et seq.,

10 The Delbiidonls colOlogue pl'vides ihe following $liiement "we ore l'Cquirod by law to hove your ID on

Jìe. Plense send u legible copy of a Driver'S Iiccnse. r.D. Curd: Birth CCl1ilícale or 1'0551'011 showing your

nume. signaiure. and dale ofbii'iJ)." This LD. cnn be moiled 10 u. or yOll con Pax to 716-945-3291. &
Ccrt. oj' A;dza Snlikhov ~ 30.. Exh. ë.

14
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the Responsibility Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D-8.b, and Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A

54:40A-3, Plaintiffs assert that the Final Judgment by Default should find

that Defendants violated the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act ("CF A")

N.J.S.A 56:8-1 gh seq. and its regulations including those dealing with

General advertising, NJ.A.C.13:45A-9.1 ~ sea. by advertising and selling

cigarettes in New Jersey through unconscionable commercial practices,

misrepresentations and knowing omissions. The CF A, N.J.S.A. 56:8-2

prohibits:

The act, use or employment by any person of any

unconscionable commercial practice, deception, fraud,
false pretense, false promise, misrepresentation, or the
knowing, concealment, suppression, or omission of any
material fact with intent that others rely upon such
concealment, suppression or omission, in connection

with the sale or advertisement of any merchandise

Plaintiffs assert that the Money Mailer advertisement violated the CF A

and its Advertising Regulations by misrepresenting that Defendants sold

"tax free" cigarettes when taxes are due on cigarettes sold in the State

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:40A-8; and by misrepresenting that "if 

we don't

have it, we can order it" when, in fact, only cigarettes on the Directory may

be sold in New Jersey. See Cert of Salikhov ~r17, Exh. D.

In support of these assertions, Plaintiffs have submitted copies of 
the

Money Mailer Advertisements sent to New Jersey Consumers. The Money

15
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Mailer advertisements solicit "TAX FREE CIGARETTES DELIVERED TO

YOUR DOOR." See Cert. ofInvestigator Aziza Salikhov, Exh. D. Also,

the advertisement states "IF WE DON'T HAVE IT, WE CAN ORDER IT."

See id., Exh. D. As a result, the Court finds that Defendants made the above

misrepresentations and are in violation of the CPA, NJ.S.A. 56:8-2 and its

Advertising Regulations.

In addition to the above misrepresentations, Plaintiffs next allege that

Defendants committed at least eight (8) further CFA violations through

unconscionable commercial practices. Again, the CF A, N.! .S.A. 56:8-2

prohibits:

The act, use or employment by any person of any

unconscionable commercial practice, deception, fraud,
false pretense, false promise, misrepresentation, or the
knowing, concealment, suppression, or omission of any
material fact with intent that others rely upon such
concealment, suppression or omission, in connection

with the sale or advertisement of any merchandise

Plaintiffs state that on June 26, 2008, and again on October 6, 2008, the

investigator purchased cigaretes from Defendants, and each time an

additional four CF' A violations for unconscionable commercial practices

were committed. See Cert. of Aziza Salikhov, ~~ 46,62. Speci fically,

Detèndants (i) sold cigarettes that were not listed on the Directory (2) when

they were not licensed (3) these cigarettes did not bear the New Jersey ta

16
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stamps and (4) furtermore, when the investigator purchased the cigarettes,

she was not asked to verify jier age. See id., ~'138, 53. The Court will now

examine each of these four allegations to determine whether Defendants

committed eight violations of the CPA.

First, the Couit prev iously found that Defendants sold cigarettes not

listed on the Directory, on June 26, 2008 or October 6,2008, as required by

the Responsibility Act, N.J.S.A. 52:4D.8.b Defendants violated this law in

connection with the sale of cigarettes. The Court finds that Defendants

disregard for this law constitutes an unconscionable commercial practice

under the CF A.

Second, the Court previously found that Defendants were not licensed to

sell cigarettes in New Jersey, on June 26, 2008 or October 6,2008, as

required by the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-3. The Court finds that

Defendants disregard for this law constitutes an unconscionable commercial

practice under the CFA.

Third, Plaintiffs assert that Defendants engaged in another

unconscionable commercial practice under the CF A by selling cigarettes

without the required New Jersey tax stamps. Plaintiffs submitted picture

copies of the cigarette packs that were received by the Investigator on July

14,2008 and October 16,2008. See id., ,r 43 & 59 & Exhs. I, J, L, & M.

17
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No New Jersey tax stamps appear on any of 
the cigarette packs. id. The

Court finds that selling cigarettes that did not include New Jersey tax stamps

was an unconscionable commercial practice under the CF A.

Finally. the Court previously found that when the Investigator purchased

cÎgarettes on June 26, 2008 and October 6, 2008, Defendants failed to verify

that the Investigator was at least 19 years old as required by the Cigarette

Sales Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-49c. The Court finds that Defendants disregard

for this law also constitutes an unconscionable commercial practice under

the CF A.

. Based on the evidence submitted by Plaintiffs, the Court enters a tinding

that Defendants committed eight (8) additional CFA violations for

unconscionable commercial practices when they sold cigarettes into New

Jersey.

In addition to the above eight CFA violations for unconscionable

commercial practices and the above misrepresentations in violation of 
the

CF A and its advertising regulations, PlaintitIs assert that Defendants made

the following omissions in violation ofthe CFA: (1) Failing to disclose that

purchasers of non face-to-face sales are required to pay cigarette and sales

taxes pursuant to the .Jenlns Act; (2) Failing to disclose that a consumer

must be over 19 years of age to purchaser cigarettes in New Jersey.

18
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Again, the CFA, N.J.S.A. 56:8-2 prohibits:

The act, use or employment by any person of any

unconscionable commercial practice, deception, fraud,
false pretense, false promise, misrepresentation, or the
knowing, concealment, suppression, or omission of any
material fact with intent that others rely upon such
concealment, suppression or omission, in connection

with the sale or adveitisement of any merchandise

The Court has reviewed the Money Mailer Advertiseniel1t sent to New

Jersey Consumers, Red Jacket's list of available cigarettes, Red Jacket

Tobacco's order form, and the invoice sent to Investigator. See Cert. of

Aziza Salikhov, Exhs. D & E. There are no statements or indications on

these forms pertaining to taxes due. ¡d. These omissions were made in

connection with the sale and advertisement of cigarettes. Thus, the Court

finds that Defendants failed to disclose that purchasers of non face-to-face

sales are required to pay cigarette and sales taxes pursuant to the Jenkins Act

and are In violation of the CFA and its advertising regulations for this

ommission.

Also, the Court finds that the Money Mt1Îler Advertisement sent to

New Jersey residents tàils to disclose that a consumer must be over 19 yeats

of age to purchase cigarettes in New Jersey. See Cert. of Aziza Salikhov,

Exh. D. However, the Court did find that Red Jacket Tobacco's list of

available brands of cigarettes and order form contained the following

19
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statement: "Must be 18 yrs of age or older to order." See id., Exh. E. Even

though the Court found this statement, it was not contained in the Money

Mailer Advertisement sent to New Jersey consumers. Therefore, the Court

finds that this was an omission by the Defendants under the CF A.

Overall, the Court finds that Defendants violated the Cigarette Tax

Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-3, The Responsibility Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D.1 et. seQ.,

The Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.s.A. 54:40A-46et sea., and the New Jersey

Consumer Friiud Act (CFA), N.J.S.A. 56:8-2 and its Advertising

Regulations. NJ.A.C. 13:45A-9 et seQ.. Since the Court has decided that

Defendants have committed these violations, it will next address the

damages requested by Plaintiffs for these violations.

DAMAGES

For these violations, PlaintHfs seek permanent injiinctive reliet:

attorneys' fees in the amoiint of$38,245, investigative costs in the amount

of $3,031 .40, and civi I penalties.

Specifically, Plaintiffs seek permanent injunctive relieffor Defendants

violation of the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-3, the Responsibility

Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D- i et seq., the Cigarette Sales Act, N..I.S.A. 54:40A-46 et

seq., and the Consumer Fraud Act (CFA), N.J.S.A. 56:8-2.

20
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In regards to the Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-3, Plaintiffs ask the

Court to orcler Defendants to cease and desist from advertising, and selling

cigarettes in this State unless and until they are properly licensed. The Court

orders that Defendants shall immediately and permanently, cease and dc,sist

from advertising or selling cigaretts in this State unless and until they are

properly licensed in New Jersey pursuant to N...S.A. 54:40A-3 .

As for the Responsibility Act, N.J.S.A. 52:4D-l et seq., Plaintiff, ask the

Court, pursuant to NJ.S.A. 52:4D-II c, to restrain Defendants from selling

cigarette brands and manuFacturers into New Jersey that arc not listed on the

Directory because it violates N.J.S.A.52:4D-8.b. In pertinent part,

N.J.S.A. 52:4D-1 i c. states: "The Attorney General, on behalF of the director,

may seek an injunction to restrain a threatened or actual violation of section

5 of this act...... Based on this rule, the Court will issue an injunction

pursuant to N...S.A. 52:4D-11 c. to prevent Defendants from violating NJSA

52:4D-8.b.,sclling cigarettes not listed on the Directory.

In regards to the Cigarette Sales Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-46 et seq.,

Plaintiffs request the Court to order Defendants to comply with the reporting

requirements of the Jenkins Act pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 37611, to comply

with the requirements of the Cigarette Sales Act, pursuant to ¡'U.S.A. 54:40-

ii NJ.S.A. S4:40A-49a. requires" eigur.lt¡ seller 10 comply with the federal Jenkins ACI. IS.i §376.
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49b and cii, ifand when Defendants are licensed with the State of 

New

Jersey. In response, the Court orders Defendants to comply with the

reporting requirements of the Jenkins Act, 15 U.S.C. § 376. The Court also

requires Defendants to comply with reauirements of 
the Cigarette Sales Act

NJ.S.A. 54:40-49b and c.

Finally, for Defendants violation of 
the CFA, NJ.S.A. 56:8-2, Plaintiffs

request an injunction prohibiting Defendants from selling and advertising

cigarettes to New Jersey consumers pursuant to NJ.S.A. 56:8-8 unless and

until they are duly licensed to do so in this State. NJ.S.A. 56:8-8 provides,

in pertinent part:

Whenever it shall appear to the Attorney General
that a person has engaged in, is engaging in or is
about to engage in any practice declai'ed to be
unlawful by this act he may seek and obtain in ,)
summary action in the Superior Court an
injunction prohibiting such person from continuing
such practices or engaging therein or doing any
acts in furtherance thereof...

The authority granted to the Attorney General under the CF A is intended

to confer "the broadest kind of power to act in the interest of the consumer

public." Kugler, 58 N.J. at 537; see State v. Hudson Furniture Co., 165 NJ.

Super. 5 i 6, 520 (App. Div. i 979). Based on the above rule, the Court grants

11 N.J.S./\ 54:40-49b requires ihe seller ofeißurcllcs in n non "raCe-IO.rOee 501c"IO verify. collect, or pny

all applicable Slnlc tux"". Also. ~ 54:40-49c. requires ¡h. selle' of ele",.ltes in" non "foce-io-raee

sulc" to vci'ify Il1alll1e purchaser Is ailensi 19 yeirs old.

22



OCT-05-2009 10:38 From:JUDGE SYPEK-CHANCERY 6099896589 To:973 648 7156 P.24'35

the injunction prohibiting Defendants from selling and advertising cigarettes

to Ncw Jersey consumers unless and until they are duly licensed to do so in

this State.

Thus, the Court has enjoined Defendants from further violating the

Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-3, the Responsibility Act, NJ.SA

52:40-1 et seq., the Cigarette Sales Act, N...S.A. 54:40A-46 et seg", and the

Consumer Praud Act (CFA), NJ.S.A. 56;8-2.

In addition to seeking permanent injunctive reiiet~ Plaintiffs seek

attoniey's fees in the amount ot$38,245.1J Attorneys' fees are authorized by

thc Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54AOA.24e, the Responsibility Act,

N.J.S.A. 52;4D-llc.,andtheCFA, N.J.SA 56:8-19.14

The Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-24e. states:

e. Costs; expenses. The costs recoverable in any such
proceeding shall be recovered by the director in the event
of judgment in his favor... All expenses incident to the
recovery of any penalty pursuant to the provisions of this
section shall be paid for as any other expense incident to
the administration of this act.

"The lÌme and charge brank down is .s rollows (I) AAG James SavlIge 1.9 hoiirs = $3hO,OO; (2) SDAG

Carol G. J"cobson. 41 holi1' = $7,17500: (J PAG Meliiski, 198 hoiirs = 30.690.00. Tho attorney billing
rale~ are calculaied piir~uani to Ihe guidelines issued by ihe 001. AS" Assis!an! Altmey General the
bilable ralC ror James Savage is 200 per hour. A~ a Deplll)' Attorney General wiih len or more years of
experience, ihe billable rUle ror SDAG Jacobson is 175 pcr hours. As a Dapuiy AltOrney Generai wiih live
to len years ol'cxperieiice, me billuble mle for DAG Meliiski is 155 per hoiir" ~ Ccrrilieoiìcm oreaihy
A. Melitski' 12

" The Coiirilirsi finds ihnl me hourly roles ror Pluiiilirfs' nnomey' urc rausol,""le and wil nol be oliered
by ihe Court. As to ihe hou1' billed by tiie AAG, SDAG: nnd DAG. Ihe Co"r! lillds Ihl11 all oC the hours
lisied shnll be included iii meowal'd uCattorney's rees to I'lailiirfs.
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Therefore, the Court finds that Plaintiffs are entitled to recover attorneys'

fees under the Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-24e.

Additionally, the Responsibility Act, NJ.S.A 52:4D-ll c. states in

relevant part: ".. .Pln any action brought pursuant to this section, the State

shall be entitled to recover the costs of investigation, costs of the action, and

reasonable attorneys' fees." The Court finds that Plaintift's are entitled to

attorneys' fees, pursuantto the Responsibilty Act, N.J .S.A. 52:4D- i I c.

Finally, the Consumer Fraud Act, pursuant to N.J.S.A.56:8-19

provides "...(iJn all actions under this section, including those brought by

the Attorney General, the court shall also award reasonable attorneys' fees,

tiling fees, and reasonable costs of suit." The Court finds that Plaintifts are

entitled to attorneys' fees, under the CFA, N.J.S.A 56:8-19. Overall,

Plaintiffs are entitled to attorneys' fees of$38,245 under the Cigarette Tax

Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-24e, the Responsibility Act, N.J.S.A. 52:4D-I lc., and

the CFA, N.J.S.A. 56:8-19.

In addition to injunctive relief and attorneys' fees, Plaintiffs request that

the Court order Defendants to pay investigative costs and lèes, in the total

amount of$3,031.40,15 for the use of the State of New Jersey, as authorized

"The Piniiiiíff5 do nol include how the loinl ninounl of$3.03 1.40 rorthe use of ihe ""Ie OrNèW Jersey
wus deiermined. However, the Ccrtiticuiion 01' A.ídzn S::likhov stoles thut tbo Divlsion h;:s incurred
iiwesiiii.iive custs ul'$3,031.40 in connection with ihi. mnner. See Cen. of i\,i," Snlikhov. 78.
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by the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-24e, the Responsibility Act,

NJ .SA 52:4D-ll C., and the CF A, NJ.SA 56:8-11.

The Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-24e authorizes costs and states:

e. Costs; expenses. The costs recoverable in any such
proceeding shall be recovered by the director in the event
of judgment in his favor... All expenses incident to the
recovery of any penalty pursuant to the provisions of this
section shall be paid for as any other expense incident to
the administration otthis act.

The above rule makes it clear that Plaintiffs are entitled to costs under the

Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-24e.

Plaintiffs next ask the Court to award costs under The Responsibility Act,

N.J.S.A. 52:4D-l1 c. N.J.S.A. 52:4D-ll c. states in relevant part: ".. .(i)n any

action brought pursuant to this section, the State shall be entitled to recover

the costs ofiiwestigation, costs of the action, and reasonable attorneys'

fees." The Court awards costs under the Responsibility Act, N.J.S.A.

52:4D-Ilc.

Finally, Plaintiffs ask the Couit to award costs under the CF A, NJ.S.A.

56:8-11. NJ .SA 56:8-1 i provides that: "(i)n any action or proceeding

brought lindeI' the provisions of this act, the Attorney General shall be

entitled to recover costs for the use of the State." Thus, Plaintiffs are

entitled to recover investigative costs and fees as authorized by CFA,

NJ.S.A. 56:8-1 1. Overall, the Court orders that Defendants shall pay
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investigative costs and fees, in the total amount of$3,031AO, for the use of

the State of New Jersey as authorized by the Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A.

54:40A-24a., the Responsibility Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D-llc., and CPA,

NJ .S.A. 56:8-1 1.

In addition to investigative costs and fees, attorneys' fees, and injunctive

relief, Plaintiff lastly seek civil penalties as authorized by the Cigarette Tax

Act, N.J,S.A. 54:40A-24, the Responsibilty Act, NJ.S.A. 52:4D-ll, the

Cigarette Sales Act, NJSA 54:40A-50, and the CF A, N.J .SA 56:8-13.

The Cigarette Tax Act, N.J.S.A. 54:40A-24(a) states in pertinent part:

(a) Penalties. Any person who shall engage in any
business or activity for which a license is required under
the provisions of this act, without first having obtained a
license to do so, .. ..shall be liable to a penalty of not
more than $250.00, which penalty shall be sued for, and
shall be recoverable in the name of the director; and each
day that any such business is so engaged in or conducted
shall be deemed a separate offense.

Plaintiffs' investigation and knowledge of Defendants' biisiness

operating in New Jersey began on June 13,2008. See Cert, of Aziza

Salikhov ~ 22. Plaintiffs' last telephone contact with Defendants was made

in connection with an order for cigarettes on October 6, 2008. See id., '1 48.

Defendants shipped these cigarettes on October i 3,2008. See lQ 'I~ 57-58,

& Exh. L. Defendants were operating their business at least i 22 days (from

June 13,2008 to October 13,2008) without a cigarette license in New
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Jersey. Each day is a separate violation. As a result, Defendant's shall pay a

civil penalty in the amount of$30,500 (122 days * 250 per day= 30,500), for

violations of the Cigarette Tax Act NJ.S.A. 54:40A-24.

In addition to requesting a $30,500 penalty under the Cigarette Tax Act,

NJ.S.A 54:40A-24, Plaintiffs also request for the Court to order Defendants

to pay a $10,000 penalty under the Responsibility Act, N.J.S.A. 52:4D-l1 a.

This section states:

a. ... each offer to sell cigarcttes in violation of section 5

of this act shall constitute a separate violation. For
each violation hereof, the director may also impose a
civil penalty in an amount not to exceed the greater of
500% of the retail value of the cigarettes sold or
$5,000 upon a determination of violation of section 5
of this act or any regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

Plaintiffs determined that Defendants shall pay a civil penalty in the amount

of$10,000; (5,000 for the June 26, 2008 purchase and 5,000 for the October

6,2008 purchase) which is the greater of$5,000 per violation or 500% of

the retail value of the cigarettes. This penalty is imposed by the Director of

the Division of Taxation. 
16 The Director is a Plaintiff in this action. Since

the Dírector is a Plaintiff in this action, the Court orders Defendants to pay

the $10,000 civil penalty for violating the Responsibil ity Act, NJ .S.A.

52:4D-l i a

"Th~ Oepuiy AUomey Gener.l w,i contaeied on Tuesday, September 15.2009 bec.use ¡he O,.der omitted
civil penolties unde¡'lhi, ,eeiion, She resubinined 0 revised ordei' ,)n September 22. 2009 thoi ehonged
imagroph 610 ineiude civii pcUliics under the Responsibiii¡y Act.
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Fuither, Plaintiffs request that this Court enter a Final Judgment by

Default penalizing Defendants for their violation of 
the Cigarette Sales Act,

N.J .S.A. 54:40A-50.17 Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:40A-50a.. taxation shall

assess a penalty of not less than $ i ,000 and not more than $2,000 for the

first violation of the Cigarette Sales Act. This penalty is imposed by the

Director ofthe Division of Taxation. The Director is a Plaintiff in this

action. Since the Director is a Plaintiff in this action, the Court orders

Defendants to pay a civil penalty in the amount of$ i ,000 for violating the

Cigarette Sales Act.

Finally, Plaintiffs request that this Court enter a Final Judgment by

Default penalizing Defendants in the amount of $600,000 finding that

Defendants committed 60,000 separate violations of 
the CPA, NJ.S.A. 56:8-

2, and its Advertising Regulations, NJ.A.C. 13:45A-9 et seq. The CFA

provides for the Court's award of civil penalties. N.J.SA 56:8- i 3 states:

Aiiy person who violates any of the provisions of the act
to which this act is a supplement shall, in addition to any
other penalty provided by law, be liable to a penalty of
not more than $10,000 for the first offense and not more
than $20,000 for the second and each subsequent offense.

11 The originol O,'der did nol include II penalty for Defendanls violHlion of ihe Cigarcl1c Sales Ael _ This

conflcied wiih ihe Compluint. nie Complaint soughi for ihe Cour 10 impose" pCi\nhy conder ihis seetion
Caihy Tully ni ihe DAG's omce on Seplember 15,2009 informed the COlli'l""l T.xation imposes ihis
pennliy :iiid since Taxtltion is (t 1)lílÎntirrin this m.:iiun. she omitted ~¡ from rh~ Order. She submittòd 0
revised order on September 22, 2009 which included a ciiiil penaliy for Deiènd"oLS iiioiarion of tile

Cigni'erre Snles Act.
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Plaintiffs arrived at $600,000 by considering the nuilber of offenses

committed by Defendants. Plaintiffs ask the Court to find that Defendant's

advertising and sellng cigarettes to New Jersey consumers constitutes

60,000 separate offenses of the CFA, N.J.S.A. 56:8-J et seQ., and its

Advertising Regulations, l"J.Ac. 13 :45A-9 et seq. for the Red Jacket

Money Mailer advertisement sent to New Jersey consumers. Plaintiffs

assert that Defendants committed 60,000 separate offenses because

Defendants contracted with Money Mailer to mail this advertisement to New

Jersey residents on three separate occasions. See Cert. of Aziza Salikhov, ~

70 & Exh. O. The advertisements were sent on or about April 3, 2008, May

9,2008, and June 20, 2008. See id., ""71,73,75. Moreover, each time the

advertisement was sent, it was mailed to at least 20,000 New Jersey

Residents, totaling 60,000. See id.,,'~ 7J, 73, 75-79. Based on this

evidence, the Court tinds that Defendants comm itted 60,000 separate

offenses in violation of the CFA and its accompanying regulations. Each

time the advertisement was included in the Money Mailer it constituted a

separate offense. Thus, the Court shall include in the Final Judgment by

Default that Defendants committed 60,000 separate violations of 
the CFA

NJ .S.A. 56:8-2, and its Advertising Regulations, N...A.C. 13 :45A-9 et seg.,

and shall pay a penalty in the amount of $600,000.
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In addition, Plaintiffs request this Court find that Defendants

committed eight (8) additional CFA violations for unconscionable

commercial practices and order Defendants to pay a penalty in the amount of

$10,000 each totaling $80,000 for these violations of 
the CFA, N...S.A.

56:8.1 et sea. Once again, NJ.S.A. 56:8.13 states:

Any person who violates any of the provisions of the act
to which this act Îs a supplement shall, in addition to any
other penalty provided by law, be liable to a penalty of
not more than $10,000 for the first offense and not more
than $20,000 for the second and each subsequent offense.

Based on the above rule, the Court agrees with Plaintiffs that these

penalties are appropriate based on the number of 
violations and the limited

information regarding Defendantsfinancial rewards gained from these

fraudulent practices and orders Defendants to pay a penalty in the amount of

$80,000.

The issue before the court is whether it can enter a 11nal judgment by

default as to Defendants that includes the above liability and damages,

pursuant to R. 4:43-2. R. 4:32-2 provides in pcrtinent part:

After a default has been entered În accordance with R,
4:43-1 ... a final judgment may be entered in the action
as follows:

(b) By the Court. In all other cases. . . the party entitled
to a judgment by default shall apply to the court therefor
by notice of motion pursuant to R. J :6, seived on all
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parties to the action. including the defaulting dei'endant

or the representative who appeared for the defaulting
defendant. . . .

1 f the Plaintiff also seeks a judgment that provides for inj unctive relief

and payment of civil penalties and fees and costs than R. 4:43-2(b) is

applicable. &. 4:43-2(b), further provides, in pertinent part:

If, to enable the court to enter judgment or to cain it into
effect, it is necessary to an account or to determine the
amount of damages or to establish the truth of any
allegation by evidence or to make an investigation of any
other matter, the COLlrt, on its own motion or at the
request of a part on notice to the defaulting defend,1nt or

defendant's representative, may condl'ct SLlch proof
hearings with or without a jury or take such proceedings
as it deems appropriate....

Plaintiffs make several arguments in support of its motion for the

entr oftinal judgment. First, Plaintitls argue that pursLlant to K 4:43-2,

they arc entitled to a final judgment by detàult as to Defendants. R.4:32-2

provides in pertinent part:

After a default has been entered in accordance with
R. 4:43-1 ... a final judgment may be entered in
the action as follows:

(b) By the Court. ln all other cases. . . the party
entitled to a judgment by detàult shall apply to the
court therefor...

Plaintiffs submitted a request to enter default against Defendants,

pursuant to R. 4:43.1 which was entered by the ;;Ierk of the COLrt on April 3,
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2009. Plaintiffs state that the Defendants have yet to file an answer or to

move to vacate default. Thus, Plaintiffs claim that pursuant to R. 4:43-2(b)

they are entitled to this Court's entry oftìnal judgment by default.

Plaintiffs submit that it seeks a judgment that provides for injunctive

relief and payment of civil penalties and fees and costs. R.. 4:43-2(b), further

provides. in pertinent part:

If, to enable the court to enter judgment or to cany
it into effect, it is necessary to an aCCO!Jnt or to

determine the amount of damages or to establish
the truth of any allegation by evidence or to make
an investigation of any other matter, the court, on
its own motion or at the request of a party on
notice to the defaulting defendant or defendant's

representative, may conduct such proof hearings
with or without a jury or take such proceedings as
it deems appropriate ....

Whether proof of a plaintiffs' right to relief should be required in a

default proceeding is a matter within the discretion ofthe trial judge. Metric

Inv., lnc. v. Patterson, 98 N.J. Super 130 (Law Div. ¡ 967), aff'd, 101 N.J.

Super 301 (App. Div. 1968); Douglas v. Harris, 35 N.J. 270, 276-277

(1961); Reilly v. Perehinys 33 N.J. Super 69 (App, Div. 1954),
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I.n Reilly v. Perehinys, it was not error for trial court to enter a detàult

judgment without requiring proofs as to defendant's liability in death action

where defendants made no answer to complaint, 33 N..I Super 69 (App.

Div. 1954). The court recognized the New Jersey rule which makes the

issue of proof of liability following a default a matter for the discretion of

the trial court, and added that in certain circumstances, such as where the

defendant was an incompetent or an infant, where the defendant had been

. served by publication, where the complaint was quite indefinite, or where

cÎrcumstaiices existed which stirred the court's suspicion. proof of

defendant's liability should be required.

Here, Defendants are competent adults that Plaintiffs have served by

certified and regular mail with the Summons and complete and definite

Complaint and First Amended Complaint. Finally, there are no

circumstances which stirthc court's suspicion to require proof of liability.

Even if this Court were to decide differently than the Reilly v.

Perehinys court and require proof as to Defendants liability to enter default,

Plaintiffs argue that they have already submitted suftcicnt proof 
for the

Court to enter Final Judgment by Detàuit finding that Defendants violated

the Cigarette Tax Act, NJ.S.A. 54:40A-1 et.~; the 'l'obacco Product

Manufacturers' Responsibility Act ("Responsibility Act"), Nl.S.A, 52:4D
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et. gm; the Cigarette Sales Tax Act, N.J.S.A 54:40A.46A et. :iSÇ; and the

New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act ("CF A"), NJ.S.A. 56:8-1 eL ;;eq., as well

as its Advertising Regulations, N.J.A.C. i 3:45A-9. 1 et seq., and to award the

relief Plaintiffs seek, namely, injunctive relief, civil penalties, a1tomeys' fees

and investigative costs. This proof includes a certitication ITom Investigator

Aziza Salikhov and accompanying exhibits, a certification fTom Chief

Edward Vrancik and accompanying exhibits, a certification from DAG

Cathy A. Melitski and accompanying exhibits, and a brie!'

The Court enters Final Judgment by Default as to Defendants finding

for the claims and damages asserted by the State of 
New Jersey. Motion for

Final Judgment by Default is hereby granted.

The Office of the Attorney General shall submit an order to the Court

in accordancc with this decision.
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